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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The United States Post Office and Courthouse in Atlanta is an imposing 
structure covering one block in the center of downtown. Fronting For­ 
syth Street on the southeast, its boundaries are defined also by Walton, 
Fairlie, and Poplar streets. First occupied in 1911, the structure ex­ 
hibits characteristics of the Second Renaissance Revival style of the 
late nineteenth-early twentieth centuries. The five-story, U-shaped 
building has a granite exterior on the street facades and a buff-colored 
brick surfacing in the U-shaped or court area. The ground story is rusti­ 
cated -while the upper wall surfaces are smooth providing a background for 
a variety of ornate openings. Surmounting the building is a heavy cornice 
making the low roof invisible from the street.

A slight projection on the Forsyth Street facade puncuates the main en­ 
trance and courtroom side of the building. Each major floor has seven 
openings within the projected area. On the ground story are three en­ 
trances flanked by two windows. The second story openings, which lead 
onto balustraded balconies, have complete entablatures with flat molded 
cornices supported by scrolled brackets and carved classical motifs on the 
friezes. Designating the courtroom are two-story arched -windows which 
are separated by pilasters.

Simple arched openings, including one centrally located entrance on both 
the Walton and Poplar Street sides, are used throughout the ground floor, 
Excepting on the back or Fairlie Street side where windows are rectangular, 
Dividing the first and second floors is a stringcourse, the lower section 
carved with what could be called a modified bead and reel motif, and the 
upper section in a wave pattern. Upper story openings on the ends of the 
Forsyth Street facade and other street facades are uniform. Those on the 
second story are ornate with heavy entablatures having either an arched 
or gabled pediment. Third story windows also have complete entablatures 
with the only carving on the friezes. Fourth story windows are smaller 
with molded entablatures and carved keystones.

Gapping the structure is the repeated use of a complete entablature. The 
molded architrave with dentiling is very pronounced on all facades except­ 
ing the projected section of the main entrance where it is plain and with­ 
drawn. Within the frieze are the fifth floor openings which are square 
on all sides but the main facade where they are rectangular and separated 
by carved panels. The cornice is most pronounced and elaborate on the 
projected area. Carved anthemion motifs decorate the roofline.

Spanning the court or U-shaped area on Fairlie Street is an iron arch 
covering the loading area, and attached to the distributing room. Few 
alterations have been made to this or any other part of the exterior of 
the building,

The basic interior floor plan has not changed drastically, although some 
details have been either altered or eliminated. The halls of the first 
floor or main post office area consist of a series of arches resting on 

/flat marble pilasters. Wainscoting and window and door framing are marble
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Old Post Office, or more officially, the United States Post Office 
and Courthouse in Atlanta is one of the most architecturally important 
and distinguished buildings of the early twentieth century remaining 
in the downtown area, and is one which makes a major visual contribu­ 
tion to the central city. Built in the Second Renaissance Revival 
style, the Old Post Office was first occupied in 1911 after taking 
over three years to build.

A government publication of 1901, pictures the previous Atlanta Post 
Office built of brick in 18?6-1880, and later enlarged in 1889-1890. 
It was this structure which was replaced in the early twentieth cen­ 
tury. Contemporary photographs taken during construction from 1907- 
1910, show the foundation being dug by May, 1907* James Knox Taylor, 
Supervising Architect of the Treasury Department at the time, was 
responsible for the design of the building.

In 1931-1933, the building at 76 Forsyth Street became the "Old Post 
Office" when major postal services were moved to another newer 
structure* Presently, the Old Post Office is occupied primarily by 
a post office station and by the United States courts and related 
agencies.
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while upper wall surfaces are plaster. The location of the two enclosed 
staircases corresponds to the single outside entrances on both the Walton 
and the Poplar Street sides. Marble wainscoting and steps, and iron and 
brass railings are used on the staircases. Tucked in the stairwells are 
elevators which appeared in 1910 photographs of the interior although the 
original grill work has disappeared.

Upper floors contain office space where ceilings have been lowered and 
floors either covered or replaced. The United States Court of Appeals is 
located on the third floor. The large, rectangular courtroom is covered 
with elaborately carved oak paneling repeating many of the motifs of the 
exterior. The three arched windows are heavily draped. Service areas 
are located in the basement.

The building dimensions are 192*0" x 189'8".

GPO 921-724


